
  Special Called Chester County Transportation Meeting July 6th 2021.  

SPECIAL CALLLED  

 CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
Tuesday, July 6th, 2021 at 5:15 PM

R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex
 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order

2. Approval of minutes
a. May 3rd, 2021 CCTC Minutes. Pg. 2

3. Old Business
a. Update on repair for Wylie Road. -Bill Coleman

b. Update on signage for Sugar Plum Road. -Bill Coleman.

c. Update on Craigbrow and Quail Hollow sidewalks. - Bill Coleman.

d. Update on Baseball Alley- Rick Crap.

e. Update on JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk installation. - Rick Crap.

f. Update on Deerbranch Road- Rick Crap.

g. Update regarding Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut. Attorney Winters.  Pg. 5

4. New Business

a. Recommendation of Award for Britt Lane- Procurement Director Susan Cok. Pg 7

b. Approval to the SCDOT in the amount of $500.00 for dedication markers Christopher King, Sr. 
Memorial Highway Dedication Sign.- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick. Pg. 10

c. Request to Reimburse the Road Department for Road Maintenance from April 21, 2021 to June 18, 
2021 in the amount of $14,505.01 dollars. Pg.14

5. Adjourn



       Chester County Transportation Meeting May 3rd, 2021.       

 CHESTER COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Monday, May 3rd, 2021 at 5:15 PM

R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex
 1476 J A Cochran Bypass, Council Chambers 

MINUTES 

Present: Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan, Councilman Mike Vaughn, 
Clerk to Council Karen Lee and County Attorney Joanie Winters. Councilman William Killian arrived at 5:20 pm and Councilwoman 
Guy arrived at 5:19 pm. Absent: Councilman Pete Wilson was absent with prior notification.  Rules of Procedure Section 2-59- and 
60 were suspended. 

1. Call to Order-Interim Chairman Frederick called the meeting to order.

2. Approval of minutes
a. April 6th, 2021 CCTC Minutes.
Councilman Jordan motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 3-0 to
approve.

3. Old Business
a. Approval of 2022 SCDOT/CTC partnership. -Bill Coleman.
Bill Coleman stated at the last CTC meeting Council approved Shirley Road in partnership with
SCDOT where they do the base work and CTC does the paving. They need to know which roads
they will be paving for 2022 since a lot of behind-the-scenes test comes into play. He proposed to
do Minter and half of Pilgrim Road by starting on the Chester end since it was the worst.  Pilgrim
road was not on DOT list, but they agreed to pave it. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to accept
the recommendations of Minter and Pilgrim Road, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 4-0 to
approve.

b. Update of Douglas and Washington Street sidewalks. Bill Coleman.
Mr. Coleman stated the rules and regulations for the TAP program that was discussed at the last
CTC meeting had changed. Now they give the State x amount of dollars and would be competitive
and a 20% match. Projects will have to compete with other projects in the State. Douglas Road
does not have a chance now because it has no where to go on either end. Washington Street could
be made to end at the Riverwalk or the high school but to do it that way the sidewalks would have
to be done a mile and quarter longer just to get the half mile.  He and Councilman Vaughn
discussed it and it would not be very cost efficient. Councilman Vaughn stated he was
disappointed to hear that since the sidewalks would serve the folks that live in the Douglas and
Washington street neighborhoods.

Vice Chairman Branham said when you say competitive are you talking about how many 
residents, the population density. Mr. Coleman said the way he understood the new rules and 
regulations was each County would submit their projects to a committee who will decide which 
is justified and which is not. They would decide which projects to complete to take care of the 
money, he did not know what the criteria would be to be competitive but was told sidewalks to 
nowhere would be considered non-starter.  Vice Chairman Branham asked if Quail Hollow and 
Craigbrow Circle could be added to the project and would they qualify, they had been mentioned 
at the last CTC meeting.  He was sure Craigbrow Circle was a mile long. Mr. Coleman said the 



  Chester County Transportation Meeting May 3rd, 2021.  

CTC committee would have to direct him to proceed to look and see if Craigbrow Circle qualifies 
for the TAP program. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to add sidewalks to Craigbrow Circle 
with the 20% match, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

c. Update on Baseball Alley- LB Cannon.
Mr. Cannon stated Baseball Alley was 95% complete and were waiting to put down shoulder
material. They were changing the drainage structures along with seeding.

d. Update on JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk installation. -LB Cannon
Mr. Cannon stated they were waiting on two handicap ramps to be poured for Ashford Street and
across the bypass that was included in the DOT permit. They were waiting on an inspection from
DOT as well.

4. New Business
a. Discussion regarding Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut. - LB
Cannon
Mr. Cannon stated they were waiting on the decision by the County if they considered paying the
$365 annually and $1000 dollars for administration work. Attorney Winters said she did not like
the agreement, a lot of indemnity that would fall on the County even if they are negligent. Right
now, she said it was not favorable to the County. She asked to have it back on the next agenda.

b. Discuss truck traffic on Sugar Plum Road. -Councilwoman Guy.
Councilwoman Guy stated a resident that lived on the road was concerned with tractor trailers
parking there and felt like the road was too small to have that type of truck parked on it. She asked
if DOT could put up a sign stating, “no eighteen-wheeler parking”. She said the resident had
spoken to DOT before but cannot get them to post a sign. Councilwoman Guy motioned to have
the Attorney Winters write a letter to SCDOT requesting the sign “no tractor trailers parking” on
Sugar Plum Road, second by Councilman Jordan. Attorney Winters said if approved it would be
by an ordinance. Councilman Killian stated if they are only parking the tractor and not the trailer,
he did not see a problem with it but if they were parking the truck and trailer that would be a big
problem since it is a small road. He stated more residents from that neighborhood should have a
voice to see if they have a problem with the parking instead of going off one complaint. Mr.
Coleman said with CTC’s permission he would call the district traffic officer to ask him to look
at it and confirm with Council whether to proceed. Vote 5-0 to approve.

c. Discuss Road repair on Wylie Road. Councilwoman Guy.
Councilwoman Guy said she was representing one of the residents on Wylie Road, her complaint
was at the end of Wylie Road where the pavement ends it was a big drop off onto dirt. She said
SCDOT says their maintenance ends at the end of the pavement and its not listed on the County
Road list. Public Works Director Robert Hall stated when the pavement ends the road bears off to
driveways that go to the left and to the right. Councilwoman Guy said the resident wants gravel to
put in the drop off. Mr. Hall said since her driveway comes off a state road, he could not do it.
Councilwoman Guy asked if Mr. Coleman could look at, he said he would.

d. Approval of 2022 Road repaving list-Public Works Director Robert Hall.
Public Works Director Robert Hall said the list he originally sent had 14 rows but with the list that
was provided they are approximately 32 rows. They have gone out and looked at the roads and
put a priority list together and graded each one by letters, A, B, C, D and F. The first 14 roads are
considered as F’s since they were the worst roads in the County they had found so far. He asked
Council to review them first then he would send the list to the engineering firm for evaluation and



 

                           Chester County Transportation Meeting May 3rd, 2021.                        
 

cost estimates. He was trying to get the process started earlier than what was done last year. 
Councilman Vaughn stated in October of last year CTC held a workshop to discuss the ordinance 
and asked if the ordinance and the selection of the roads presented figure into the selection.  

 
  Mr. Hall stated yes, based on the ordinance, the list presented to you tonight are the worst roads 
in Chester County, the formula from the ordinance would be used when it gets sent to the firm for 
them to do evaluations. They based the roads by potholes, alligator cracking, poor shoulders, 
dribbling and ruts along with uneven pavement. The roads were not based off districts. 
Councilman Vaughn stated by the ordinance it is one road per district, there is a problem with the 
ordinance. The ordinance needs to be updated to comply with today’s standards, it would also help 
Mr. Hall’s department as well. Council asked Attorney Winters to look at the ordinance to see 
what revisions could be made.  
 

 e. Request to Reimburse the Road Department for Road Maintenance from November 2020 to  
January 2021 in the amount of $38,170.38 dollars.  
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

 f. Request to Reimburse the Recycling Department for Sign Material from January 2021 to  
             April 2021 in the amount $1458.38 dollars.  Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by  
             Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

  5.        Adjourn-Councilman Vaughn motioned to adjourn, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 
 
Time: 5:54 PM 
 
 

 

  

 



105 MAIN STREET, CHESTER, SOUTH CAROLINA  29706 

803-581-8190     803-581-8243 (FAX) 

WINTERSLAWSC.COM 

MEMO 
ATTORNEY CLIENT PRIVILEGED 

TO: Susan Cok 

FROM:  Joanie Winters, County Attorney 

DATE: June 16, 2021 

RE: Pedestrian Crossing 

Susan: 

You asked me to review the License Agreement for the Pedestrian Crossing out on the 
J.A. Cochran Bypass and also my opinion regarding this pedestrian sidewalk.  Here are my 
thoughts: 

1. This Agreement puts ALL costs onto the County.  While that appears to only be $365 for
the annual license, it doesn’t end there.  There is a one-time contract preparation fee of
$1,000; there is an application fee of $1500; the County is responsible for maintenance
of approaches, the crossing itself, surrounding areas, signage, curbs, gutters, shoulders,
slopes, fills and cuts, drainage, in other words everything around, through, above and a
bit beyond the sidewalk.  If the RR doesn’t believe we are doing a good job, they reserve
the right to hire someone and charge us back for the work.

2. We have to furnish gates, barricades, signs, flashing light signals or crossing warning
devices the RR deems necessary and must pay for all of this.  The Railroad can decide to
do this instead but will charge us back.

3. While the construction is going on, if the RR believes that it is advisable, they will place
flaggers, inspectors or surveyors at the rate of $150.00 per hour with a minimum of four
hours for each individual placed.

4. Changes that need to be made to the right of way or track (including raising, lowering or
additions to) we pay for.

5. We are responsible for all permits from Federal, State, and Local authorities.



CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL 

 

2 | P a g e  
 

6. Any wirelines, pipelines or utilities need permitting separately. 
7. If we use a third party for the construction or maintenance of the sidewalk, they have to 

be approved and under a Right to Enter agreement.   
8. The hold harmless is extremely far reaching.  The County is holding the Railroad 

harmless for EVERYTHING up to and including for incidents that occur due to the 
negligence of the Railroad.  The indemnity survives the expiration or termination of the 
Agreement meaning we are forever liable.   

9. Finally, they require $3,000,000 of General Liability for a combined single limit per 
occurrence and an aggregate of $6,000,000 as a minimum.  This is for property, bodily 
harm and GL.  I’m not sure we have those kinds of limits currently, thus creating an 
additional expense for more insurance. 

 
Certainly a lot to consider but I would not recommend that we enter into this 

Agreement due to the potential liability and the ongoing cost factors.  We do need to 
determine exactly what we have committed to under this Agreement.  I don’t have a signature 
page for the County on the Agreement but the copy of the Application does have Robert Hall’s 
name on there.   
 























Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2021    1 

  CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING 
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
 Tuesday, July 6th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

      Interim Supervisor Dr. Wylie Frederick Presiding 

 Agenda 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation

3. Approval of Minutes-June 21st, 2021 Council Minutes. Pg. 20

4. Citizen Comments

5. Public Hearing

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt a Fund Balance Policy.

6. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations

a. 3rd Reading of 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt a Fund Balance Policy. Pg. 24

b. 2nd Reading of 2021-9 Ordinance to Repeal section 46-94 of the Chester County Code-transporting
loose material. Pg.29

c. Resolution 2021-13 To Approve Chester County 2021-2022 Departmental Organizational Charts. Pg. 31

7. Old Business

a. 3rd Reading of CCMA21-14: Judy Funderburk request Tax Map # 158-01-08-007-000 located at 1474 
Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R1 (Rural One) to RG-2 (General Residential). Planning 
Commission voted 6-0 to deny.Pg.67

b. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-17: - David Woods request Tax Map # 079-01-14-017-000 located at 730 
Sugarplum Road, Chester be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential).
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Pg.72

c. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-18: - Eugene Raffaldt request Tax Map # 161-01-00-011-000 located at 5584 
Brooklyn Road, Great Falls be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential).
Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve.  Pg.75

d. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-19: - Carolina Gypsum, LLC request Tax Map # 080-02-02-006-000 located at 531 
Wilson Street, Chester be rezoned from GC (General Commercial) to ID-2 (Limited Industrial).
Planning Commission vote 7-0 to approve. Pg.78

e. From CCTC:

1. Action taken on repair on Wylie Road.

2. Action taken for signage on Sugar Plum Road.

3. Action taken regarding the update on the Pedestrian Crossing Agreement at Railroad at Pizza Hut.



Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2021    2 

4. Action taken regarding the update on Craigbrow and Quail Hollow sidewalks.

5. Action taken regarding the update on Baseball Alley.

6. Action taken regarding update JA Cochran Bypass and Ashford Street Sidewalk installation.

7. Action taken regarding Deerbranch Road.

8. Action taken regarding the Recommendation of Award for Britt Lane.

9. Action taken regarding the approval to the SCDOT in the amount of $500.00 for dedication
markers Christopher King, Sr. Memorial Highway Dedication Sign.

10. Action taken to reimburse the Road Department for Road Maintenance from April 21, 2021 to
June 18, 2021 in the amount of $14,505.01 dollars.

8. New Business
a. Council to consider a multi-year contract for Election Systems & Software Maintenance in the amount of
$73,725 dollars.  Voter Registration Director Karen Roach. Pg.80

b. Council to consider a 5-year 911 contract for UPS maintenance paid annually in the amount of $2540.16
dollars for the Sheriff’s Office. E 911 Director Doug McMurray. Pg.93

c. Council to consider a new 3-year contract for extended service for a Truvista line upgrade and RB office line
in the amount of $3700 + taxes for the Sheriff’s office and paid monthly. E911 Director Doug McMurray.
Pg. 102

d. Council to consider a 3-year contract service agreement renewal for Johnson Controls fire inspections in the
amount of $3,900.22 annually. E911 Director Doug McMurray. Pg.105

e. Discuss the Sheriff’s office request to apply for a CPD De-escalation Training Grant. - Sheriff Dorsey.
Pg.106

f. Requirements under State Law for Development Agreements- County Council.

9. Boards and Commissions
a. Resignation from the Board of Assessment of Appeals. Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick. Pg.113

10. Executive Session

a. To receive legal advice regarding the 2018 Bond. Attorney Winters.

b. To receive legal advice regarding Project 2043. Attorney Winters.

c. To receive legal advice regarding Project 2106. Attorney Winters.

d. To receive legal advice regarding the local option sales tax.  Attorney Winters.

e. To receive legal advice regarding County Infrastructure. - Attorney Winters.

11. Council Actions Following Executive Session

a. Action taken regarding legal advice for the 2018 Bond.

b. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2043.

c. Action taken regarding legal advice for Project 2106.

d. Action taken regarding legal advice for the local option sales tax.

e. Action taken regarding legal advice for County Infrastructure.



Chester County Council Meeting July 6th, 2021    3 

12. Council Comments

13. Adjourn

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

     * * * P U B L I C  N O T I C E * * *    

Chester County Council has relaxed some of the COVID measures put into place for personal appearances at County Council 
meetings but continues to encourage social distancing while in County facilities. 

Guidelines for Addressing Council 

  Citizens Comments: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number.
• Each citizen will be limited to three minutes.
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to

speak on behalf of the group.

Public Hearings: 

• Please sign the sign-in sheet upon arrival, name, address and telephone number.
• Each speaker will be limited to a three-minute presentation.
• Large groups (more than 5) speaking on the same position on an issue must appoint one representative to

speak on behalf of the group.
When introduced: 

• Approach the podium, state your name and address.
• Speak loudly and clearly making sure that the microphone is not obstructed.
• Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council.
• Do not approach the Council table unless directed.

Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you: 

• Use profanity.
• Stray from the subject.
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.
• Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.



 Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021    1 

CHESTER COUNTY COUNCIL MINUTES 
R. Carlisle Roddey Chester County Government Complex

  1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass Chester, SC 29706 
 Monday, June 21st, 2021 at 6:00 PM 

       Present:  Interim Chairman Dr. Wylie Frederick, Vice Chairman Joe Branham, Councilman Brad Jordan,  
        Councilman Mike Vaughn, Councilwoman Mary Guy, Councilman Pete Wilson, Clerk to Council Karen Lee 
        and County Attorney Joanie Winters.  Councilman Killian was absent.

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance and Invocation

3. Approval of Minutes
May 27th, 2021 Budget Workshop minutes.
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.
June 3rd, 2021 Budget Workshop and Special Called minutes.
Councilman Jordan motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.
June 7th, 2021 Council minutes.
Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 4-0 to approve.
Councilwoman Guy was not in attendance for the 6-7-2021 meeting and did not vote.
June 14th, 2021 Special Called minutes.
Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Councilman Wilson. Vote 4-0 to approve.
Councilman Jordan was not in attendance for the 6-14-2021 meeting and did not vote.

4. Citizen Comments
Jeff Harris, 4354 Simpson Road, Edgemoor, SC referenced the Gateway masterplan and the cost to
develop and implement the plan. He asked Council to think about the consequences from fast growth
without adequate business tax income to help compensate so residents would not get hit with a big tax bill.

David Hensley, 1971 South Anderson Road, Rock Hill, SC stated he wanted to speak about item 7.d-e.
The proposed development would have commercial components that the county needs, the number of
dwellings and mix of homes had been reduced through the Planning Commission’s recommendations.

Judson Stringfellow, 2116 Crown Centre Dr, Rock Hill, SC stated they had forty acres of land that was
already zoned commercial set aside and has a entrance road through it. They want to do a mix of homes at
different price range.

Judy Funderburke, 5899 Cindy Lane, Fort Lawn SC, stated she has the opportunity to buy a piece of land
to put here manufactured home there. She asked Council to approve her request to rezone the property to
RG-2 zoning.

Public Hearing- Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick opened the Public Hearing. No one signed up to speak.
a. 3rd  Reading of Ordinance 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish Operating
And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, South Carolina
For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes For Chester County
For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure Of Tax Revenues And
Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize The County To Borrow Money
In Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of Sums Borrowed By The County Governing
Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester
County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other Matters Relating To County Government.



 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         2 
 

Interim Chairman Dr. Frederick closed the public hearing.  
 

5. Ordinances/Resolutions/Proclamations 

a. 3rd  Reading of Ordinance 2021-4 Chester County Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Budget to Establish 
Operating And Capital Budgets For The Operation Of The County Government Of Chester County, 
South Carolina For The Fiscal Year Commencing  July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Levy Of Taxes 
For Chester County For The Fiscal Year Commencing July 1, 2021; To Provide For The Expenditure 
Of Tax Revenues And Other County Funds; To Provide For Other County Purposes; To Authorize 
The County To Borrow Money In Anticipation Of Taxes And To Provide For The Repayment Of 
Sums Borrowed By The County Governing Body; To Provide For The Payment Of Tort Claims And 
Worker's Compensation Claims Against Chester County; To Provide For Certain Fiscal And Other 
Matters Relating To County Government. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by 
Councilwoman Guy. It was discussed to purchase four new vehicles for the Sheriff’s office in the amount of 
$220,890 which also included the sirens, radio and other equipment. Councilwoman Guy withdrew her 
second, Vice Chairman Branham withdrew his motion. Vice Chairman Branham motioned to amend the 
ordinance for fiscal year 2021 /2022 to include the purchase of four new vehicles with equipment for the 
Sheriff’s department, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

             b. 1st Reading of 2021-7 Ordinance to Repeal section 46-94 of the Chester County Code-transporting  
             loose material. Councilman Wilson motioned to approve, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to  
             approve.  

 
             c. 2nd Reading of 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt a Fund Balance Policy. 
             Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by Councilman Jordan.  Attorney Winters stated after  
             speaking with Treasurer Darby the minimum assigned should be 25% and not to exceed 50% of the general  
             fund.    
 
             d.  Resolution 2021-12 A Resolution to authorize the County of Chester, by Chester County Council  
             to  sell certain vehicles of the County and the Sheriff’s Office Identified herein upon such terms and  

conditions as described.  Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve, second by Councilman Vaughn.  
Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
   7.      Old Business   
 a. Update of the 2021 Reassessment- Assessor Rick Anderson. 

Mr. Anderson gave an update stating his department had been working diligently on the 2021 reassessment.             
The assessment notices were printed and would be mailed on July 1, he stated it was not a bill but simply 
shows what your fair market value is along with the taxable value of a property. He asked if citizens had any 
questions to call his office and someone would help them.   
 

 b. Update on the Burnt House Meeting Cemetery. -Councilman Jordan. 
Dr. Neely Gaston gave an update stating the committee began meeting in November of 2020. The current 
fence along Mr. Scott McWaters property is located on 0.046 of an acre on his property. He is fine with 
keeping the fence there but does not want the liability of people getting hurt while visiting the cemetery and 
traveling on the county-maintained road from Bobcat Lane to the cemetery and would like for the County 
to provide a MOU stating he has no liability. Dr. Gaston stated they would like permission from Council to 
invite Dr. Jonathan Leader from the USC Institute of Archaeology and Anthropology, to use ground 
penetrating radar to locate unmarked graves and the hope of determining if any African American family 
members are buried there, and to determine the most accurate number of total grave sites on the property. 
Vice Chairman Branham motioned to give permission to Burnt House Meeting Cemetery Committee to 
write a letter to Dr. Jonathan Leader, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve. They also asked 
permission from Council to raise private funds. Councilman Vaughn motioned to give Burnt House Meeting 
Cemetery Committee permission to raise private funds and put it on the website, second by Councilman 



 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         3 
 

Jordan. Attorney Winters stated a separate account would be put in place for monies collected through the 
Treasure Department. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

 
c. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-14: Judy Funderburk request Tax Map # 158-01-08-007-000 located at 1474 
Catawba River Road, Fort Lawn, SC be rezoned from R1 (Rural One) to RG-2 (General Residential). 
Planning Commission voted 6-0 to deny. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve the rezoning, second by 
Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

             d. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-15:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-024- 
             000 located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from RS-1 (Single Family) to PD (Planned  
             Development). Planning Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve with  
             conditions, second by Councilman Wilson. After much discussion it was decided to have the third reading at  
             the July 19th meeting so Council could obtain more information. Vote 4-1 to approve. Councilman Jordan  
            opposed.  
 

             e. 2nd Reading of CCMA21-16:  JDSI, LLC by Judson Stringfellow request Tax Map # 124-00-00-027- 
             000 located off Hwy 9, Richburg, SC be rezoned from R2 (Rural Two) to PD (Planned Development). 
            Planning Commission voted 4-2 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Vice  
 Chairman Branham. It was decided to have the third reading at the July 19th meeting so Council could obtain 
             more information. Vote 4-1 to approve. Councilman Jordan opposed.  
 
  8.       New Business 
 a. 1st Reading of CCMA21-17: - David Woods request Tax Map # 079-01-14-017-000 located at 730 
             Sugarplum Road, Chester be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential). 
             Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second by  
             Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
 b. 1st Reading of CCMA21-18: - Eugene Raffaldt request Tax Map # 161-01-00-011-000 located at  
             5584 Brooklyn Road, Great Falls be rezoned from RG-1 (Multi Family) to RG-2 (General Residential). 
 Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. Councilman Vaughn motioned to approve, second by Vice 
 Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 
 c. 1st Reading of CCMA21-19: - Carolina Gypsum, LLC request Tax Map # 080-02-02-006-000 located  
             at 531 Wilson Street, Chester be rezoned from GC (General Commercial) to ID-2 (Limited Industrial). 
 Planning Commission vote 7-0 to approve.  Vice Chairman Branham motioned to approve with a reverter 
             clause if they move out the property would be revert back to GC, second by Councilman Vaughn. Vote 5-0 to  
             approve. 
 
 d. Council to authorize EMS to apply for a no match grant for up to $75,000 to enhance mobile 
             vaccinations for Covid. EMS Director Britt Lineberger. Councilwoman Guy motioned to approve, second 
              by Councilman Wilson. Vote 5-0 to approve.  
 

e. Discuss procedures for renting facilities in the Town of Great Falls. County Council. 
Attorney Winters stated she had spoken with Angela Strothers to see how procedures for renting out the facilities 
in Great Falls was done. She stated Ms. Strothers informed her David Minors field is free since there is no lights 
or shelters there. If it is used for commercial, she rents it out for $125.00 and requires an insurance certificate. 
Anyone using the David Minors field must abide by the Town of Great Falls rules since it’s in their jurisdiction. 
Sometimes conflicts happen when she is not informed if an event has been booked without her knowledge. Private 
events are required to provide an insurance certificate also if they are bringing in bouncy houses, etc. Councilman 
Vaughn asked if she rents out the Rodman field. Attorney Winters stated Ms. Strothers told her she has never been 
asked to rent out that facility. She uses the same recreational application for all fields.  
 



 

                                           
 

                               Chester County Council Meeting June 21st, 2021                                                         4 
 

Councilman Vaughn stated there were lights at David Minor field and that would be an expense to the County to 
have the lights on. He stated private security should be hired since they have one policeman on duty. The number 
one priority for the use of the fields should be the children of Chester County. He felt more work needs to be done.  

 
f. Discuss holding monthly scheduled Council workshops. Councilman Wilson.  
Councilman Wilson stated he wanted the rest of Council to consider holding standing workshops. Last year there 
were 15 special called meetings and 3 workshops, this year there has been 8 special called meetings with 3 workshops 
hopefully Council could hold ten workshops a year. This would give Council an opportunity to have more discussions 
on housing, roads and other topics that may come up. He stated it would make them much more effective as a Council. 
If there is nothing to discuss for an upcoming workshop it can be cancelled.  

9.        Boards and Commissions -None 

10.     Executive Session 
          Councilman Jordan motioned to go into executive session, second by Councilwoman Guy. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

a. To receive legal advice regarding the Chester Facilities Corporation. Attorney Winters.  

b. To receive legal advice regarding the Fund Balance Ordinance. Attorney Winters. 

c. To receive legal advice regarding the Gateway. Attorney Winters.  

d. To receive legal advice regarding Project Magma. Attorney Winters 

11.     Council Actions Following Executive Session 
          Councilman Wilson motioned to go back to regular session, second by Councilman Jordan. Vote 5-0 to approve.  

a. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Chester Facilities Corporation. Information only. 

b. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Fund Balance Ordinance. Information only. 

c. Action taken on legal advice regarding the Gateway.  Information only. 

d. Action taken on legal advice regarding Project Magma. Information only. 

12.    Council Comments 
         Councilman Wilson stated he they came in tonight the new West Chester Fire truck was parked outside, it replaces  
         a 1983 Chevrolet front mounted pump and hoped it will serve West Chester for many years to come. He asked to 
         keep the family of Bobby Holcombe who passed in prayers, he was a big part of this County and would be truly  
         missed.  
           
13.    Adjourn 
         Councilwoman Guy motioned to adjourn, second by Vice Chairman Branham. Vote 5-0 to adjourn.  
 
Time: 10:15 PM 
 

Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing 
Institute of SC, WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester 
County Government Building 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 



1 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-8 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A FUND BALANCE POLICY FOR CHESTER COUNTY 

 
 WHEREAS, Chester County has the authority under S.C. Code §4-9-30 to adopt 

ordinances and to promulgate rules and regulations pertaining to its government and 

affairs, and to review interpret and amend its ordinances, rules and regulations, and 

oversee the County’s finances; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chester County Council is empowered by the provisions of S.C. Code 

S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-30(5), as amended to enact ordinances and policies relating to the 

fiscal management of the County in accordance with existing laws, and regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a Fund Balance policy is intended to provide guidelines during the 

preparation and execution of the annual budget to ensure that sufficient reserves are 

maintained for unanticipated expenditures or revenue shortfalls; and 

 

 WHEREAS, a Fund Balance policy also provides flexibility throughout the fiscal 

year to make adjustments in funding for programs approved in connection with the 

annual budget; and 

 

 WHEREAS, any Fund Balance policy should be established based upon a long-

term perspective recognizing that stated thresholds are considered minimum balances; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, the main objective of establishing and maintaining a Fund Balance 

policy for the County is to be in a strong fiscal position that will allow for better 

positioning to weather negative economic trends. 

 

 

 

 

 



2 

Ordinance No. 2021-8 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS 
HEREBY ADOPTED: 

Chester County Council does hereby adopt the Fund Balance Policy as attached 
herein as Exhibit A, and incorporated by reference into this Ordinance.  

This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council 
on the date of the final reading approval. 

Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 

Attest: 

By:________________________ 
Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

June21st,2021                       
July 6th,2021 
               2021 

Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021 

Chester County, South Carolina 



3 
 

        Ordinance No. 2021-8 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 
 

Section 1. Purpose. The Fund Balance Policy is intended to provide guidelines 
during the preparation and execution of the annual budget to ensure that sufficient 
reserves are maintained for unanticipated expenditures or revenue shortfalls.  It also is 
intended to preserve flexibility throughout the fiscal year to make adjustments in 
funding for programs approved in connection with the annual budget.  The Fund 
Balance Policy should be established based upon a long-term perspective recognizing 
that stated thresholds are considered minimum balances.  The main objective of 
establishing and maintaining a Fund Balance Policy is for the County to be in a strong 
fiscal position that will allow for a better position to weather negative economic trends. 
 
Section 2. Categories. The Fund Balance consists of five categories:  
Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned. 
 

• Nonspendable Fund Balance consists of funds that cannot be spent due to their 
form (e.g., inventories and prepaids) or funds that legally or contractually must 
be maintained intact. 

• Restricted Fund Balance consists of funds that are mandated for a specific 
purpose by external parties, constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

• Committed Fund Balance consists of funds that are set aside for a specific 
purpose by the County’s highest level of decision making authority (governing 
body).  Formal action must be taken prior to the end of the fiscal year.  The same 
formal action must be taken to remove or change the limitations placed on the 
funds. 

• Assigned Fund Balance consists of funds that are set aside with the intent to be 
used for a specific purpose by the County’s highest level of decision making 
authority or a body or official that has been given the authority to assign funds.  
Assigned funds cannot cause a deficit in unassigned fund balance. 

• Unassigned Fund Balance consists of excess funds that have not been classified 
in the previous four categories.  All funds in this category are considered 
spendable resources.  This category also provides the resources necessary to 
meet unexpected expenditures and revenue shortfalls. 

 
Section 3. Responsibility.  Nonspendable funds are those funds that cannot be 
spent because they are either: 
 
 i. Not in spendable form (e.g., inventories and prepaids) 
 ii. Legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 
 



4 
 

        Ordinance No. 2021-8 
 
It is the responsibility of the Treasurer and/or his designee to report all Nonspendable 
Funds appropriately in the County’s financial records. 
 
Restricted funds are those funds that have constraints placed on their use either: 
 
 i. Externally by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulation, or 
other governments 
 ii. By law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
It is the responsibility of the Treasurer and/or his designee to report all Restricted Funds 
appropriately in the County’s financial records. 
 
Section 4. Order of Use of Restricted and Unrestricted Funds.  When both 
restricted and unrestricted funds are available for expenditure, restricted funds should 
be spent first unless legal requirements disallow it or the expenditure would violate any 
restrictions on the funds. 
 
When committed, assigned and unassigned funds are available for expenditure, 
committed funds should be spent first, assigned funds second, and unassigned funds 
last in accordance with any restrictions on the funds. 
 
Section 5. Authority to Commit Funds.  The County Council has the authority to set 
aside funds for a specific purpose.  Any funds set aside as Committed Fund Balance 
requires, at a minimum, the passage of an ordinance will be necessary.  Commitment 
must take place on or before June 30th of the applicable fiscal year.  If the actual amount 
of the commitment is not available by June 30th, the ordinance must state the process 
or formula necessary to calculate the actual amount as soon as information is available.  
In the event County Council wishes to lift the committed status of funds so that they 
may be used for general purposes, a formal action equal to that which originally 
committed the funds, namely an ordinance, must be taken.   
 
Section 6. Stabilization Funds.  The County Council has the authority to establish a 
Financial Stabilization Account that will be a Committed Fund Balance.  A Financial 
Stabilization Account may be established for the purpose of providing funds for an 
urgent event that affects the safety of the general public (e.g., flood, pandemic, etc.).  
The minimum level for the Financial Stabilization Account is 5% of the General Fund 
expenditures.  The recognition of an urgent event must be established by County 
Council.  A budget amendment must be approved by County Council.  In the event that 
the balance drops below the established minimum level, County Council will develop a 
plan to replenish the Financial Stabilization Account balance to the established 
minimum level within two years. 
 



5 
 

Section 7. Authority to Assign Funds.  Upon passage of the Fund Balance Policy, 
authority is granted to the County Treasurer and/or his designee, to assign funds for 
specific purposes in an amount not to exceed $_____per purpose or in total not to 
exceed $______.  Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance must be reported to 
County Council at their next regular meeting and recorded in the minutes.  County 
Council has the authority to remove or change the assignment of the funds. 
 
County Council has the authority to set aside funds for the intended use of a specific 
purpose.  Any funds set aside as Assigned Fund Balance requires a simple majority vote 
and must be recorded in the minutes.  The same action is required to change or remove 
the assignment. 
 
Upon passage of a budget ordinance where Fund Balance is used as a source to balance 
the budget, the Treasurer and/or his designee shall record the amount as Assigned Fund 
Balance. 
 
Section 8. Unassigned Fund Balance.  Unassigned Fund Balance is the residual 
amount of Fund Balance in the General Fund.  It represents the resources available for 
future spending.  An appropriate level of Unassigned Fund Balance should be 
maintained in the General Fund in order to cover unexpected expenditures and revenue 
shortfalls. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance may be accessed in the event of unexpected expenditures up 
to the minimum established level upon approval of a budget amendment by County 
Council.  In the event of projected revenue shortfalls, it is the responsibility of the 
Treasurer and/or his designee to report the projections to County Council on a quarterly 
basis and shall be recorded in the minutes. 
 
Any budget amendment that will result in the Unassigned Fund Balance dropping below 
the minimum level will require the approval of 2/3 vote of the County Council. 
 
The Fund Balance policy establishes a minimum Unassigned Fund Balance equal to ___% 
of General Fund expenditures.  In the event that the balance drops below the 
established minimum level County Council will develop a plan to replenish the fund 
balance to the established minimum level within twelve months.   



1 
 

 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA )   Ordinance No. 2021-9 
    ) 
COUNTY OF CHESTER  ) 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL CHESTER COUNTY CODE §46-94 ENTITLED 
“TRANSPORTING LOOSE MATERIAL” 

 
 WHEREAS, Chester County Council has determined it is necessary to repeal a 

section of the Chester County Code; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Chester County Council is empowered by the provisions of S.C. Code 

Ann. §§44-55-1010, et seq., and S.C. Code Ann. §4-9-35, as amended (the “Enabling 

Acts”), to enact ordinances relating to the management of the County in accordance 

with existing laws, policies and regulations; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County enacted Ordinance §46-94 as a standalone ordinance 

meant to ensure tarping of vehicles carry loose material; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County subsequently enacted a revised Ordinance §46-93 which 

under subsection (2)(a) the issue of loose materials is addressed; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in the interest of eliminated duplication and possible confusion, it 

becomes necessary to repeal §46-94; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chester County Council has determined that §46-94 of the Chester 

County Code has become conflicting and superfluous and should be repealed since it is 

now addressed in a more comprehensive ordinance. 

   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL FOR CHESTER 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, DULY ASSEMBLED THAT THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE IS 
HEREBY ADOPTED: 
 
 Chester County Council does hereby determine that Chester County Code §46-94 
has become conflicting and superfluous and is hereby repealed in its entirety.  
 



2 

 Ordinance No. 2021-9 

This Ordinance shall be effective upon adoption by the Chester County Council 
on the date of the final reading approval. 

Enacted and approved this ____day of _________, 2021. 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:_________________________________ 
Dr. Wylie Frederick 

Interim Supervisor, Chester County 

Attest: 

By:________________________ 
Karen Lee, Clerk to County Council 
Chester County, South Carolina 

First Reading:  
Second Reading: 
Public Hearing: 

June 21st, 2021  
July 6th, 2021 
                2021 

Third Reading: ________ ___, 2021 

Chester County, South Carolina 





































































































 

1 

ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, LLC 
HARDWARE MAINTENANCE AND SOFTWARE LICENSE, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 
 

THIS HARDWARE MAINTENANCE AND SOFTWARE LICENSE, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made effective as of the date set forth below, by and between Election Systems & 
Software, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company (“ES&S”) and Chester County, South Carolina 
(“Customer”).   
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. ES&S has sold to Customer the proprietary voter tabulation equipment (“Equipment”) and licensed the 
software (“Software”) described on Attachment 1 and Customer now desires to obtain maintenance services 
for such Equipment and license, maintenance and support services for such Software.   

 
B. ES&S has agreed to provide such services, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
C. This Agreement supersedes and replaces in their entirely any and all prior agreements between ES&S and 

Customer respecting maintenance services for such Equipment and license, maintenance and support services 
for such Software. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals (which are specifically incorporated herein 
by this reference) and the mutual representations, warranties, covenants and agreements set forth below, the 
parties hereby agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 
GENERAL 

 
1.  Term; Termination.  This Agreement for Hardware Maintenance and Software License, 

Maintenance and Support Services shall be in effect for the coverage period as described in Attachment 1 (the 
“Initial Term”).  Upon expiration of the Initial Term, this Agreement shall automatically renew for an unlimited number 
of successive Two-Year Periods (each a “Renewal Period”) until this Agreement terminated by the first to occur of 
(a) either party’s written election not to renew, which shall be delivered to the other party at least sixty (60) days 
prior to the end of  the Initial Term or any Renewal Period, as applicable, (b) the date which is thirty (30) days after 
either party notifies the other that it has materially breached this Agreement, if the breaching party fails to cure such 
breach (except for a breach pursuant to subsection (e), which will require no notice), (c) the date which is thirty (30) 
days after ES&S notifies Customer that it is no longer able to procure replacement parts that may be needed in 
order to perform the Hardware Maintenance Services contemplated hereunder, (d) the date on which the Equipment 
or firmware installed thereon is no longer certified by federal and/or state authorities for use in Customer’s 
jurisdiction, or (e) the date which is thirty (30) days after Customer fails to pay any amount due to ES&S under this 
Agreement.  The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve Customer of its liability to pay any amounts due to 
ES&S hereunder and shall only entitle Customer to a prorated refund of any fees already paid to ES&S in the event 
this Agreement is terminated pursuant to subsection 1(b) or 1(c) above. 

2. Fees.  In consideration for ES&S’ agreement to provide Hardware Maintenance Services and 
Software License, Maintenance and Support Services under this Agreement, Customer shall pay to ES&S the 
Hardware Maintenance and Software License, Maintenance and Support Fees set forth on Attachment 1 for the 
Initial Term and any Renewal Periods.  The Hardware Maintenance and Software License, Maintenance and 
Support Fees for the Initial Term are due as set forth on Attachment 1.  ES&S may increase the Hardware 
Maintenance and Software License, Maintenance and Support Fees for a Renewal Period by not more than 5% of 
the amount of the most recent Fees paid by Customer.  All fees for any Renewal Period shall be due and payable 
no later than thirty (30) days prior to the beginning of such Renewal Period.  The Software License, Maintenance 
and Support Fee shall be comprised of (i) a fee for the Software License, Maintenance and Support provided for 
the ES&S Firmware, and (ii) a fee for the Software License, Maintenance and Support provided for all other ES&S 
Software, and shall be in addition to any fees or charges separately referred to in any Section of this Agreement.  If 
Customer elects to receive Software License, Maintenance and Support for an Add-On or New Product during the 



 

2 

Initial Term or any Renewal Period thereof, ES&S will charge an incremental Software License, Maintenance and 
Support Fee for such services.        

ARTICLE II 
HARDWARE 

 
1. Maintenance Services.  The Hardware Maintenance Services to be provided to Customer under 

this Agreement for the ES&S equipment set forth on Attachment 1 (the “Products”) shall be subject to the following 
terms and conditions:  

a. Routine Maintenance Services.  An ES&S Representative shall provide such services 
as may be necessary to keep the Products working in accordance with their Documentation, normal wear 
and tear excepted (“Normal Working Condition”).  The services provided by ES&S pursuant to this 
Subsection 1(a) are referred to herein as “‘Routine Maintenance Services.  Routine Maintenance Services 
shall be provided once each Twenty-Four (24) Months during the Initial Term or any Renewal Period 
thereof.  Generally, Routine Maintenance Services shall include cleaning, lubrication, diagnostic check, 
and calibration services.  The Routine Maintenance Services shall not include the repair or replacement 
of any ES&S Equipment components that are consumed in the normal course of operating the Equipment, 
including, but not limited to, printer ribbons, printer cartridges, paper rolls, batteries, removable media 
storage devices, PCMCIA cards or marking devices.  Customer may request that Routine Maintenance 
Services be performed more than once during the Initial Term or any Renewal Period.  Any such request 
shall be made at least sixty (60) days before the Routine Maintenance Services are desired.  The per-unit 
fee for such additional Routine Maintenance Services is set forth on Attachment 1 and shall be due within 
thirty (30) days after invoice date.  ES&S will schedule the Routine Maintenance Services with Customer.  
The Routine Maintenance Services will be provided at Customer’s Designated Location.  Customer’s 
“Designated Location” shall mean Customer’s owned or leased facility at which Customer desires ES&S 
to perform the Hardware Maintenance Services.  

b. Repair Services.   

i.  Defects Under Normal Use and Service.  If a defect or malfunction occurs in 
any Product while it is under normal use and service, Customer shall promptly notify ES&S, and 
ES&S shall use reasonable efforts to restore the item to Normal Working Condition as soon as 
practicable.  The services provided by ES&S pursuant to this Subsection 1(b)(i) are referred to 
herein as “Repair Services”.  ES&S will perform Repair Services in conjunction with a Routine 
Maintenance Service event at the Customer’s Designated Location.  

ii. Defects Due to Customer Actions or Omissions.  If a defect or malfunction 
occurs in any Product as a result of (1) repairs, changes, modifications or alterations not 
authorized or approved by ES&S, (2) accident, theft, vandalism, neglect, abuse or use that is not 
in accordance with instructions or specifications furnished by ES&S or (3) causes beyond the 
reasonable control of ES&S or Customer, including acts of God, fire, flooding, riots, acts of war, 
terrorism or insurrection, labor disputes, transportation delays, governmental regulations, and 
utility or communication interruptions, rodent infestation, or if Customer does not notify ES&S 
within 72 hours after it knows of the defect or malfunction, Customer shall pay ES&S for the 
Repair Services at ES&S’ then-current rates, as well as for the cost of all parts used in connection 
with such Repair Services.  

iii.      Timing.  The date(s) on which any Repair Services shall be provided shall be 
mutually agreed upon by ES&S and Customer.  If Customer requires ES&S to provide 
“emergency” Repair Services (which shall be defined as Repair Services that are provided by 
ES&S within 48 hours after Customer notifies ES&S of the need therefore), and such emergency 
Repair Services are not needed as a result of an action, error or omission by ES&S, Customer 
shall pay a surcharge, as set forth on Attachment 1.   



 

3 

iv.    Loaner Unit.  At Customer’s request and if such product is available, ES&S shall 
use reasonable efforts to promptly make available to Customer a product that is the same as, or 
substantially similar to, the Product for which Repair Services are being performed (a “Loaner 
Unit”).  If the Repair Services are being performed pursuant to Subsection 1(b)(ii) above, 
Customer shall pay ES&S for the use of the Loaner Unit at ES&S’ then-current rates including 
the cost of shipping. 

c. Exclusions.  ES&S has no obligation under this Agreement to (i) assume the obligations 
under any existing or expired warranty for a Third-Party Item; (ii) repair or replace Product components 
that are consumed in the normal course of operating the Product, including, but not limited to, printer 
ribbons, printer cartridges, paper rolls, batteries, removable media storage devices, PCMCIA cards or 
marking devices, or (iii) repair any Product from which the serial number has been removed or altered.  In 
addition, ES&S may, at any time in its discretion, determine that any Product is no longer fit for Hardware 
Maintenance Services because it is in such poor condition that it cannot practically be restored to Normal 
Working Condition, or cannot be restored to Normal Working Condition at an expense that is less than the 
then-current value of the Product.  If such a determination is made, ES&S shall no longer be required to 
provide Hardware Maintenance Services for such Product.  ES&S shall also refund to Customer an 
amount equal to (1) that portion of the most recent fee paid for Hardware Maintenance Services that is 
attributable to such Product, multiplied by (2) a fraction, the numerator of which is the remaining number 
of days in the respective period within the Initial Term or Renewal Period for which such fee was paid and 
the denominator of which is the total number of days in the respective period within such Initial Term or 
Renewal Period.  

d. Sole Provider; Access.  Customer shall not permit any individual other than an ES&S 
Representative to provide maintenance or repairs with respect to the Products for so long as the Initial 
Term or any Renewal Period is in effect.  Customer shall provide ES&S Representatives with all 
information necessary to enable them to provide Hardware Maintenance Services.  Customer shall 
likewise provide full access to the Products and adequate working space for all Hardware Maintenance 
Services performed at its Designated Location, including sufficient heat, lights, ventilation, electric current 
and outlets.  

e. Environment Conditions.  Products should be stored in a clean, dry and secure 
environment.  During the storage and operation of the Products, the temperature and moisture ranges 
should be maintained in accordance with the Product’s Documentation. 

f. Reinstatement of Hardware Maintenance Services; Inspection.  If the Initial Term or 
any Renewal Period thereof expires without being renewed, Customer may thereafter resume receiving 
Hardware Maintenance Services upon (a) notification to ES&S and (b) the granting to ES&S of access to 
the Products.  ES&S requires Customer to allow it to inspect such Products before it provides any 
Hardware Maintenance Services.  The purpose of such inspection shall be to determine whether or not 
the Products are in Normal Working Condition.  The cost of such inspection will be at ES&S’ then current 
rates and shall be due from Customer within thirty (30) days of its receipt of ES&S’ invoice therefore.  If 
any of the Products is not in Normal Working Condition, ES&S, at the option of Customer, (i) shall provide 
such repairs and replacements as it deems reasonable and necessary to restore such item to Normal 
Working Condition, at Customer’s expense with respect to the cost of any labor (charged at ES&S’ then 
current rates) and parts used in such repairs or replacements, or (ii) shall not provide any Hardware 
Maintenance Services with respect to such Product(s). 

ARTICLE III 
ANNUAL LICENSE OF SOFTWARE 

 
 1. Grant of License.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, ES&S hereby grants to 
Customer a nonexclusive, nontransferable license for its bona fide full time, part time or temporary employees to 
use the Software and all related operating instructions, user manuals and training materials supplied by ES&S 
(collectively the “Documentation”) in Chester County, South Carolina (“Jurisdiction”).  The license allows 
Customer to use and copy the Software (in object code only) and the Documentation, solely for the purposes of 



 

4 

defining an election and tabulating and reporting election results in the Jurisdiction.  The license does not permit 
Customer to take any of the following actions: 

a. Reverse engineer, decompile, disassemble, re-engineer or otherwise create, attempt to 
create, or permit, allow or assist others to create, the source code or the structural framework for part or 
all of the Software; 

b. Cause or permit any use, display, loan, publication, transfer of possession, sublicensing or 
other dissemination of the Software or Documentation, in whole or in part, to or by any third party including, 
but not limited to, any transfer of possession to, or use of the ES&S Software or Documentation by any 
third party to perform any services for Customer (including, but not limited to, any coding, programming 
or layout services) without ES&S’ prior written consent; or 

c. Cause or permit any change to be made to the Software without ES&S’ prior written consent. 

d. Allow a third party to cause or permit any copying, reproduction or printing of any output 
generated by the Software (except finished ballots by ballot printers selected by Customer) in which ES&S 
owns or claims any proprietary intellectual property rights (e.g., copyright, trademark, patent pending or 
patent), including, but not limited to, any ballot shells or ballot code stock. 

 2. License Fees.  In consideration for ES&S’ grant of the license for the ES&S Software described in 
Section 1, Customer shall pay ES&S the ES&S Software License Fees set forth on Attachment 1.  Any license or 
royalty fees payable to any Third Parties for the use of any third-party items are the sole responsibility of Customer. 

 3. Term of License.  The licenses granted in Section 1 shall commence upon the delivery of the 
ES&S Software described in Section 1 and shall continue for a one-year period (the “Initial License Term).  Upon 
expiration of the Initial License Term, the licenses shall automatically renew for an unlimited number of successive 
one-year periods (each a “License Renewal Term”) upon the payment by Customer of the annual software license 
and software maintenance and support fee as set forth on Attachment 1.  ES&S may terminate either license if 
Customer fails to pay the consideration due for, or breaches Sections 1, 2, or 4 with respect to, such license.  Upon 
the termination of either of the licenses granted in Section 1 for ES&S Software or upon Customer’s discontinuance 
of the use of any ES&S Software, Customer shall immediately return such ES&S Software and the related 
Documentation (including any and all copies thereof) to ES&S, or (if requested by ES&S) destroy such ES&S 
Software and Documentation and certify in writing to ES&S that such destruction has occurred.  

 4. Proprietary Rights.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that ES&S owns all right, title and 
interest in and to the Software and Documentation, subject to the license granted herein.  ES&S likewise owns all 
patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade names and other proprietary or intellectual property in, or used in connection 
with, the Software and Documentation.  The Software and Documentation also contain confidential and proprietary 
trade secrets of ES&S which are protected by law and are of substantial value to ES&S.  Customer shall keep the 
Software and Documentation free and clear of all claims, liens and encumbrances and shall maintain all copyright, 
trademark, patent or other intellectual or proprietary rights notices which are set forth on the Software, the 
Documentation, and all permitted copies thereof. 

ARTICLE IV 
SOFTWARE LICENSE, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT SERVICES 

 
1. Services Provided.  ES&S shall provide maintenance and support services (“Software License, 

Maintenance and Support”) for the ES&S Software and ES&S Firmware (collectively, “ES&S Software”), to enable 
it to perform in accordance with its Documentation in all material respects, and to cure any defect in material or 
workmanship.  The specific Software Maintenance and Support services provided by ES&S and each party’s 
obligations with respect to such services are set forth on Attachment 1.   

2. Updates.  During the Initial License Term or any License Renewal Term, ES&S may provide new 
releases, upgrades or maintenance patches to the ES&S Software, together with appropriate Documentation 



 

5 

(“Updates”), on a schedule defined by ES&S.  Customer is responsible for obtaining any upgrades or purchases of 
Third-Party Items required to operate the Updates as well as the cost of any replacements, retrofits or modifications 
to the ES&S Equipment which may be necessary in order to operate the Updates.  All Updates shall be deemed to 
be ES&S Software for purposes of this Agreement upon delivery.  Customer may install the Updates in accordance 
with ES&S’ recommended instructions or may request that ES&S install the Updates.  ES&S may charge Customer 
at its then-current rates to (i) install the Updates, (ii) train Customer on Updates, if such training is requested by 
Customer; or (iii) provide maintenance and support on the ES&S Software that is required as a result of Customer’s 
failure to timely or properly install an Update.  In the event Customer requests that ES&S install ES&S Firmware 
Updates, ES&S shall install such ES&S Firmware Updates in conjunction with a scheduled Routine Maintenance 
Services event provided Customer is subscribing to and has paid for ES&S’ hardware maintenance services which 
include Routine Maintenance Services.  Customer shall pay ES&S to install all ES&S Firmware Updates which are 
requested to be installed outside of a scheduled Routine Maintenance Services event or in the event the Customer 
has not subscribed to ES&S’ hardware maintenance services which include Routine Maintenance Services.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Customer shall pay ES&S to install all election management software Updates.  
Customer shall be responsible for any claim, damage, loss, judgment, penalty, cost, amount paid in settlement or 
fee which is caused by Customer’s failure to install and use the most recent Update provided to it by ES&S.  If 
Customer proposes changes in the ES&S Software to ES&S, such proposals will become ES&S’ property.  ES&S 
may, in its sole discretion, elect to make or not to make such changes without reference or compensation to 
Customer or any third party.  ES&S represents to Customer that the Updates will comply with all applicable state 
law requirements at the time of delivery.  Customer shall be responsible to ensure that it has installed and is using 
only certified versions of ES&S Software in accordance with applicable law.  In the event that any Updates are 
required due to changes in state law, Customer shall be responsible for: 

 
(i) the total cost of any third-party items that are required in order to operate the Updates; 

(ii) the total cost of any replacements, retrofits or modifications to the ES&S Equipment contracted for 

herein that may be developed and offered by ES&S in order for such ES&S Equipment to remain compliant 
with applicable laws and regulations; and 

 
(iii)  Customer’s pro-rata share of the costs of designing, developing and/or certification by applicable 
federal and state authorities of such state mandated Updates. 
 

Customer’s pro-rata share of the costs included under subsection (iii) above shall be determined at the time by 
dividing the number of registered voters in Customer’s jurisdiction by the total number of registered voters in all 
counties in Customer’s state to which ES&S has sold and/or licensed the Equipment and/or Licensed Software 
purchased and licensed by Customer under this Agreement.  Customer shall pay ES&S the entire costs incurred 
for design, development and certification of any Update which is required due to a change in local law or is otherwise 
requested or required by Customer. 

3. Conditions.  ES&S shall not provide Software License, Maintenance and Support for any item of 
ES&S Software if such item requires such services as a result of (a) repairs, changes, modifications or alterations 
not authorized or approved by ES&S, (b) accident, theft, vandalism, neglect, abuse or use that is not in accordance 
with instructions or specifications furnished by ES&S, (c) causes beyond the reasonable control of ES&S or 
Customer, including acts of God, fire, flooding, riots, acts of war, terrorism or insurrection, labor disputes, 
transportation delays, governmental regulations and utility or communication interruptions, (d) Customer’s failure to 
timely and properly install and use the most recent update provided to it by ES&S, or (e) Customer's failure to notify 
ES&S within three (3) business days after Customer knows of the need for such services.  Any such Software 
License, Maintenance and Support shall be provided at the fees to be agreed upon by the parties if and when the 
need for such Software License, Maintenance and Support arises.  Replacement versions of Software requested 
by Customer as a result of items set forth in this Section 3 or as a result of Customer’s actions or inactions shall be 
billable to Customer at ES&S’ then current rates. 

4. Proprietary Rights.  ES&S shall own the entire right, title and interest in and to all corrections, 
programs, information and work product conceived, created or developed, alone or with Customer or others, as a 
result of or related to the performance of this Agreement, including all proprietary rights therein or based thereon.  
Subject to the payment of all Software Maintenance Fees, ES&S hereby grants to Customer a non-exclusive license 



 

6 

to use that portion of such corrections, programs, information and work product that ES&S actually delivers to 
Customer pursuant to this Agreement.  All licensed items shall be deemed to be ES&S Software for purposes of 
this Agreement.  Except and to the extent expressly provided herein, ES&S does not grant to Customer any right, 
license, or other proprietary right, express or implied, in or to any corrections, programs, information, or work product 
covered by this Agreement.  

5.  Reinstatement of Software License, Maintenance and Support.  If the Initial Term or any 
Renewal Period thereof expires without being renewed, Customer may thereafter receive a Software License and 
resume receiving Software Maintenance and Support upon (a) notification to ES&S, (b) payment of all fees, which 
would have been due to ES&S had the Initial Term or any Renewal Period not expired, and (c) the granting to ES&S 
of access to the ES&S Software, so that ES&S may analyze it and perform such maintenance as may be necessary 
before resuming the Software License, Maintenance and Support services.. 

ARTICLE V 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 
1. Taxes; Interest.  Customer will provide ES&S with proof of its tax-exempt status.  If Customer does 

not provide such proof, it shall pay, or shall reimburse ES&S for, all sales and use, excise or other similar taxes 
imposed on the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, but shall in no event be liable for taxes imposed on 
or measured by ES&S’ income.  If Customer disputes the applicability of any tax to be paid pursuant to this Section 
1, it shall pay the tax and may thereafter seek a refund.  Any disputed or undisputed payment which is past due to 
ES&S will bear interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month (or such lesser amount as may be 
permitted by applicable law) for each month or portion thereof during which it remains unpaid. 

2. Limitation of Liability.  Neither party shall be liable for any indirect, incidental, punitive, exemplary, 
special or consequential damages of any kind whatsoever arising out of or relating to this Agreement.  Neither party 
shall be liable for the other party’s negligent or willful misconduct.  ES&S’ total liability to Customer arising out of or 
relating to this Agreement shall not exceed the aggregate amount to be paid to ES&S hereunder.  Customer shall 
be directly liable for damages arising from (a) the selection of, use of and results obtained from any equipment, 
software or services not provided by ES&S and used with the Equipment or Software; or (b) user errors, voter errors 
or problems encountered by any individual in voting that are not otherwise a result of the failure of ES&S to perform.  
ES&S shall not be liable under this Agreement for any claim, damage, loss, judgment, penalty, cost, amount paid 
in settlement or fee that is caused by (y) Customer’s failure to timely or properly install and use the most recent 
Update provided to it by ES&S or (z) Customer’s election not to receive, or to terminate, the Hardware Maintenance 
Services or the Software License and Maintenance and Support. 

3. Excusable Nonperformance.  Except for obligations to make payments hereunder, if either party 
is delayed or prevented from performing its obligations under this Agreement as a result of any cause beyond its 
reasonable control, including acts of God, fire, riots, acts of war, terrorism or insurrection, labor disputes, 
transportation delays, epidemic, pandemic, governmental regulations and utility or communication interruptions, the 
delay shall be excused during the continuance of, and to the extent of, such cause, and the period of performance 
shall be extended to the extent necessary to allow performance after the cause of delay has been removed.  ES&S 
agrees to work with Customer, at Customer's request, to develop mutually agreeable alternatives in order to 
minimize the negative impact of any such delay. 

4. Notice.  Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, 
and will be deemed given when (a) delivered personally, (b) sent by confirmed email, (c) sent by confirmed fax, (d) 
sent by commercial overnight courier (with written verification of receipt) or (e) sent by registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested, postage prepaid, when the return receipt is received.  All communications shall be sent to 
the attention of the persons listed on the signature page to this Agreement and at the addresses, email address or 
fax numbers set forth on such signature page unless other names, addresses or fax numbers are provided by either 
or both parties in accordance herewith.   

5. Assignment.  Except in the case of a reorganization of the assets or operations of ES&S with 
one or more affiliates of ES&S or the sale, transfer or assignment of all or substantially all of the assets of ES&S to 
a successor who has asserted its intent to continue the business of ES&S, neither party may assign or transfer this 



 

7 

Agreement or assign, subcontract or delegate any of its rights, duties or obligations hereunder without the prior 
written consent of the other party hereto, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld or conditioned, nor unduly 
delayed.   

6. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, shall be binding upon and inure 
to the benefit of the parties and their respective representatives, successors and assigns.  This Agreement, 
including Attachment 1 (which is specifically incorporated herein by this reference), contains the entire agreement 
of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes and replaces any and all other prior or 
contemporaneous discussions, negotiations, agreements or understandings between the parties, whether written 
or oral, regarding the subject matter hereof.  Any provision of any purchase order, form or other agreement which 
conflicts with or is in addition to the provisions of this Agreement shall be of no force or effect.  In the event of any 
conflict between a provision contained in an Attachment to this Agreement and these General Terms, the provision 
contained in the Attachment shall control.  No waiver, amendment or modification of any provision of this Agreement 
shall be effective unless in writing and signed by the party against whom such waiver, amendment or modification 
is sought to be enforced.  No consent by either party to, or waiver of, a breach by either party shall constitute a 
consent to or waiver of any other different or subsequent breach by either party.  This Agreement shall be governed 
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State in which the Customer resides, without regard to its 
conflicts of laws principles.  The parties agree that venue for any dispute or cause of action arising out of or related 
to this Agreement shall be in the state and federal courts of the United States located in the State in which the 
Customer resides.  ES&S is providing Equipment, Software and services to Customer as an independent contractor, 
and shall not be deemed to be a “state actor” for purposes of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.  ES&S may engage subcontractors 
to provide certain of the Equipment, Software or services, but shall remain fully responsible for such performance.  
The provisions of Article II, Section 1(f) and Article III, and Article IV, Sections 1-6 shall survive the termination of 
this Agreement, to the extent applicable. 

7. Counterparts; Execution By Facsimile.  This Agreement may be executed in two or more 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument.  The parties may execute this Agreement and exchange counterparts of the signature pages by means 
of facsimile transmission, and the receipt of such executed counterparts by facsimile transmission shall be binding 
on the parties.  Following such exchange, the parties shall promptly exchange original versions of such signature 
pages. 



 

8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed effective as of the date it is signed by the last 
of the parties hereto. 

 
ELECTION SYSTEMS & SOFTWARE, LLC  CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
11208 John Galt Boulevard             1476 J.A. Cochran Bypass - 109 Ella Street 
Omaha, NE  68137     Chester, SC  29706 
Fax No.: (402) 970-1291    Fax No.: N/A 
      
 
                  ___________________________________ 
Signature      Signature  
 
                                                                .  ___________________________________ 
Name (Printed or Typed)    Name (Printed or Typed) 
 
V.P. of Finance                 ___________________________________ 
Title       Title 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
Date       Date  

 



 

9 

PRICING SUMMARY AND PAYMENT TERMS 
 

Sale Summary: 

Description Refer To Amount 

ES&S Hardware Maintenance Fees Attachment 1 $35,760.00 

ES&S Software License, Maintenance and Support Fees Attachment 1 $15,135.00 

ES&S Firmware License, Maintenance and Support Fees Attachment 1 $22,830.00 

   

     Total Maintenance Fees for the Initial Term:  $73,725.00 

Terms & Conditions: 

Note 1: Any applicable state and local taxes are not included, and are the responsibility of Customer.  

Note 2: Invoicing and Payment Terms are as Follows: 
 

$24,575.00 due on or before June 1, 2021 for the Coverage Period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 
2022. 
 
$24,575.00 due on or before June 1, 2022 for the Coverage Period of July 1, 2022 through June 30, 
2023. 
 
$24,575.00 due on or before June 1, 2023 for the Coverage Period of July 1, 2023 through June 30, 
2024. 

 



 

10 

Attachment 1 
 

ES&S HARDWARE MAINTENANCE DESCRIPTION AND FEES 
 

Initial Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024 

 

Qty Description Coverage Period 
Annual  

Maintenance Fee 
 Per Unit 

Maintenance Fee 
In Total 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2021 through 6/30/2022 $130.00 $3,250.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2021 through 6/30/2022 $85.00 $8,670.00 

Total Maintenance Fees for the Coverage Period  
July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

 $11,920.00 

 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023 $130.00 $3,250.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023 $85.00 $8,670.00 

Total Maintenance Fees for the Coverage Period 
July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 

 $11,920.00 

 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024 $130.00 $3,250.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024 $85.00 $8,670.00 

Total Maintenance Fees for the Coverage Period  
July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

 $11,920.00 

 

Total Hardware Maintenance Fees for the Initial Term  $35,760.00 

 
Note 1: The Per-Unit Fees if Customer requests more than one Routine Maintenance visit in a 24-month 
period shall be 75% of the then current maintenance fee per unit.   
 
Note 2: Surcharge for Emergency Repair Services shall be the daily maintenance service rate in effect at 
the time such service is requested. 
  
Note 3: Customer’s Designated Location:  Chester County, South Carolina         
 
Note 4: The Per Unit Surcharge for performance of Routine Maintenance visit at more than one Customer 
Designated Location shall be $25.00 per unit for all units located at second or more locations. 
 
Hardware Maintenance Services Provided by ES&S Under the Agreement 
 

1. Telephone Support. 
 

2. Issue Resolution.  
  

3. ES&S posts Technical Bulletins available through Customer’s ES&S Web-based portal. 
 

4. Routine Maintenance Services. 
 

 Onsite scheduled maintenance inspection per Article 2, Section 1a.  The inspection 
includes: 

 
o Service performed by an ES&S trained and certified technician. 



 

11 

o Performance of factory approved diagnostics on the unit, identifying and making 
adjustments where necessary as indicated by the testing. 

 
o Replacement of worn or defective with new or remanufactured federally and state 

certified parts. 
 

o Conducting a final test to verify that the unit is working according to manufacturer’s 
specifications. 

 
o Use of a checklist tailored for each piece of equipment. 

 
5. Repair Services. 

 

 Customer receives coverage for interim repair calls. 
 

o Interim calls may be scheduled during the regular Routine Maintenance Services 
event or scheduled in conjunction with other service work being performed in close 
proximity of Customer’s location if they are not election critical. 

 
o A Product may be sent to ES&S’ Depot location for repairs at a time to be mutually 

agreed upon by ES&S and Customer. 
 

6. Priority Services. 
 

 Customer has access to the ES&S Help Desk for assistance. 

 The customer receives priority on service calls. 

 The customer receives priority on response time. 

 The customer receives priority on certified ES&S parts inventory. 
 

Note: Except for those Hardware Maintenance Services specifically set forth herein, ES&S is under no obligation 
and shall not provide other Hardware Maintenance Services to the Customer unless previously agreed upon in 
writing by the parties.   
 
  
 

 



 

12 

ES&S SOFTWARE LICENSE, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT DESCRIPTION AND FEES 
SOFTWARE 

 
Initial License and Maintenance Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024 

 
Listed below is the Software and Fees for which Software License, Maintenance and Support will be provided: 
 

Qty Description Coverage Period 
Software License, 
Maintenance and 

Support Fee In Total 

1 ElectionWare Software – Reporting Only 7/1/2021 through 6/30/2022 $5,045.00 

1 ElectionWare Software – Reporting Only 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023 $5,045.00 

1 ElectionWare Software – Reporting Only 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024 $5,045.00 

 

Total Software License, Maintenance and Support Fees for the Initial Term $15,135.00 

 
ES&S SOFTWARE LICENSE, MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT DESCRIPTION AND FEES 

FIRMWARE 
 

Initial License and Maintenance Term: July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2024 
 

Listed below are the Hardware Products and Fees for which Firmware License, Maintenance and Support will be 
provided: 
 

Qty Description Coverage Period 

Annual  
Firmware License, 
 Maintenance and 

Support Fee Per Unit 

Firmware License, 
Maintenance and 

Support Fee In Total 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2021 through 6/30/2022 $80.00 $2,000.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2021 through 6/30/2022 $55.00 $5,610.00 

Total License, Maintenance and Support Fees for the  
Coverage Period July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 

 $7,610.00 

 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023 $80.00 $2,000.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2022 through 6/30/2023 $55.00 $5,610.00 

Total License, Maintenance and Support Fees for the  
Coverage Period July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 

 $7,610.00 

 

25 Model DS200 Scanner 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024 $80.00 $2,000.00 

102 ExpressVote BMD Terminal 7/1/2023 through 6/30/2024 $55.00 $5,610.00 

Total License, Maintenance and Support Fees for the  
Coverage Period July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024 

 $7,610.00 

 

Total Firmware License, Maintenance and Support Fees for the Initial Term $22,830.00 

 
Software License, Maintenance and Support Services Provided by ES&S under the Agreement 
 

1. Telephone Support. 
 



 

13 

2. Issue Resolution.  
  

3. Technical Bulletins will be available through Customer’s ES&S Web-based portal. 
 
Note: Except for those Software License, Maintenance and Support services specifically set forth herein, ES&S is 
under no obligation and shall not provide other Software License, Maintenance and Support services to the 
Customer unless previously agreed upon by the parties.    
 
Software License, Maintenance and Support and Hardware Maintenance and Support Services – Customer 
Responsibilities 
 

1. Customer shall have completed a full software training session for each product selected. 
 

 Customer shall have completed training at a proficiency level to successfully use the 
hardware (firmware) and software products. 

 

 Customer shall have the ability to install firmware and application software and make 
changes to date and time settings. 

 

 Customer shall have the ability to change consumable items. Any other changes made 
by the customer must be pre-approved in writing by ES&S. 

 
2. Customer shall have reviewed a complete set of User Manuals. 

 
3. Customer shall be responsible for the installation and integration of any third-party hardware or software 

application or system purchased by the Customer, unless otherwise agreed upon, in writing, by the 
parties. 

 
4. Customer shall be responsible for data extraction from Customer voter registration system. 

 
5. Customer shall be responsible for implementation of any security protocols physical, network or 

otherwise which are necessary for the proper operation of the ES&S Equipment and ES&S Software. 
 

6. Customer shall be responsible for the acceptance of the Equipment and Software, unless otherwise 
agreed upon, in writing, by the parties. 

 
7. Customer shall be responsible for the design, layout, set up, administration, maintenance or 

connectivity of the Customer’s network.  
 
8. Customer shall be responsible for the resolution of any errors associated with the Customer’s network 

or other hardware and software not purchased or recommended by ES&S and not otherwise identified 
in the User Guides as part of ES&S’ Equipment and Software. 

 
9. Customer shall be responsible for all costs associated with diagnosing ballot printing problems resulting 

from the use of non-ES&S Ballot Partner Printers ballots. 
 
10. Customer shall be responsible for the payment of additional or replacement Software CDs or DVDs 

requested by Customer.  The price for such additional or replacement Software CDs or DVDs shall be 
at ES&S’ then current rates. 












































	1. 7-6-2021 CCTC Agenda
	2. 5-3-2021 CCTC Minutes
	3. MemoToSusanCokReRRSidewalkLicense
	4. Recommendation of Award Britt Lane
	5. C-Fund Disbursement - King Sr. Dedication Signs
	6. Road Dept reimbursement request
	7. 7-6-2021
	8. 6-21-2021 Minutes
	9. 2021-8 Ordinance to Adopt Fund Balance Policy
	10. 2021-9 Ordinance to Repeal Section 46-94
	11. 2021-13  Org Charts Resolution_2021-07-02-114410623
	12. CCMA21-14 Judy Funderburk_2021-05-25-141528466
	13. CCMA21-17 David Woods Rezone from RG1 to RG2
	14. CCMA21-18 Eugene Raffaldt Rezone from RG1 to RG2
	15. CCMA21-19 Carolina Gypsum LLC Rezone from GC to ID2
	16. Chester County SC - DS200-ExpressVote BMD HMA (3-Year - Silver) - 06.16.2021 (KDF edits)
	17. DC Group Revised 062321
	18. Truvista Line Internet  Upgrade RB Office Add 062221
	19. Johnson Controls Inspection Contract
	20. CPD De-esclaion training grant
	21. Gene Loving resignation from the Board of Assessement of Appeals



